GUILDFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of Guildford Borough Council held in the Council Chamber, Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey GU2 4BB on Tuesday 25 July 2017

* Councillor Nigel Manning (Mayor) Councillor Mike Parsons (Deputy Mayor)

- * Councillor David Bilbé
- * Councillor Richard Billington
- * Councillor Philip Brooker
- * Councillor Adrian Chandler
- * Councillor Alexandra Chesterfield Councillor Nils Christiansen
- * Councillor Colin Cross
- * Councillor Geoff Davis
- * Councillor Graham Ellwood
- * Councillor David Elms
- * Councillor Matt Furniss
- * Councillor Andrew Gomm Councillor Angela Goodwin
- * Councillor David Goodwin
- * Councillor Murray Grubb Jnr
- * Councillor Angela Gunning
- * Councillor Gillian Harwood Councillor Liz Hogger
- * Councillor Christian Holliday
- * Councillor Liz Hooper
- * Councillor Mike Hurdle
- * Councillor Michael Illman
- * Councillor Gordon Jackson

- * Councillor Jennifer Jordan
- Councillor Nigel Kearse Councillor Sheila Kirkland Councillor Julia McShane
- * Councillor Bob McShee
- * Councillor Marsha Moseley
- * Councillor Nikki Nelson-Smith
- * Councillor Susan Parker
- * Councillor Dennis Paul
- * Councillor Tony Phillips
- * Councillor Mike Piper
- * Councillor David Quelch
- * Councillor Jo Randall
- * Councillor David Reeve
- * Councillor Caroline Reeves
- * Councillor Iseult Roche
- Councillor Tony Rooth Councillor Matthew Sarti Councillor Pauline Searle
- * Councillor Paul Spooner
- * Councillor James Walsh
- * Councillor Jenny Wicks
- * Councillor David Wright

*Present

Honorary Freeman Jen Powell and Honorary Aldermen K Childs, Sarah Creedy, Mary Lloyd-Jones, Terence Patrick, Nick Sutcliffe, and M A H M Williamson were also in attendance.

CO29 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from The Deputy Mayor, Councillor Mike Parsons and Councillors Nils Christiansen, Angela Goodwin, Liz Hogger, Sheila Kirkland, Julia McShane, Matthew Sarti, and Pauline Searle and from Honorary Aldermen Mrs C F Cobley, Mrs C F P Griffin, J Marks, B Parke and L Strudwick.

CO30 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest.

CO31 MINUTES

The Council confirmed, as a correct record, the minutes of the Selection Council Meeting held on 9 May 2017 and the extraordinary Council meeting held on 16 May 2017. The Mayor signed the minutes.

CO32 MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

Mayor's Charities

The Mayor informed councillors of a number of events planned in his mayoral year to raise money for the British Heart Foundation (BHF) and the Mayor's Distress Fund, including:

- Walkfest Monday 4 September 2017 (Stoke Park)
- Walkfest Tuesday 19 September 2017 (Lakeside Nature Reserve, Ash Vale)
- "Fright Night!" Sunday 29 October 2017 (The Guildhall)
- Wine Tasting Thursday 30 November 2017 (The Guildhall)
- BHF Santa Run Saturday 2 December 2017 (Stoke Park)
- Musical extravaganza Sunday 25 February 2018 (Yvonne Arnaud Theatre)
- The Mayor's Charity Ball Saturday 21 April 2018 (Guildford Harbour Hotel)

CO33 LEADER'S COMMUNICATIONS

Changes to the Executive

The Leader announced the following changes to the Executive:

- (1) Changes to existing Lead Councillors' portfolio titles, which are now as follows:
 - Councillor Michael Illman Lead Councillor for Finance and Asset Management
 - Councillor Geoff Davis Lead Councillor for Special Projects and Social Enterprise
- (2) A number of changes to individual lead councillor portfolio responsibilities, details of which had been circulated to councillors before the meeting.

CO34 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

No questions or requests to speak had been received from the public.

CO35 QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS

There were no questions, on notice, from councillors.

CO36 APPOINTMENT OF HONORARY RECORDER

Following the formal retirement of His Honour Judge Christopher Critchlow DL as a Circuit Judge (and Resident Judge at Guildford Crown Court) on 9 July 2016, the Council was requested to consider the appointment of His Honour Robert Fraser MVO, who was Judge Critchlow's successor as Resident Judge, as the Honorary Recorder for the Borough of Guildford.

Upon the motion of The Mayor, Councillor Nigel Manning, seconded by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Spooner, the Council

RESOLVED:

- (1) That His Honour Judge Robert Fraser MVO, Resident Judge at Guildford Crown Court, be appointed as the Honorary Recorder for the Borough of Guildford, with such appointment taking effect immediately.
- (2) That the Council places on record its appreciation for the service of His Honour Judge Christopher Critchlow DL as the Honorary Recorder from October 2010 to date.

Reason for Decision:

To maintain the historic appointment of an Honorary Recorder for the Borough.

CO37 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

The Council considered the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2016-17. The treasury management function involved the control and management of all the Council's cash,

regardless of its source, including investments and borrowing. The Council's cash balances had built up over a number of years, and reflected a strong balance sheet, with considerable revenue and capital reserves. Officers carried out this function within the parameters set by the Council each year in the treasury management strategy statement.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) treasury management Code of Practice and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities required the Council to set Prudential and Treasury Indicators. CIPFA also required an annual report on treasury management activity and compliance with Prudential Indicators.

The objectives of the Prudential Code, and the indicators calculated in accordance with it, were to provide a framework for local authority capital finance that would ensure:

- capital expenditure plans were affordable
- all external borrowing was within prudent and sustainable levels
- treasury management decisions were taken in accordance with professional good practice and
- in taking the above decisions, the Council was accountable by providing a clear transparent framework.

The annual report confirmed that the Council complied with its Prudential Indicators (except the upper limit of variable rate investments due to having higher investment balances than expected when setting the indicator), treasury management policy statement and treasury management practices for 2016-17, .

The report summarised the Council's treasury management performance over the past year, compared to estimate and discussed the factors affecting this performance. It also contained detailed information on the return on investments and interest paid on external debt.

Upon the motion of the Lead Councillor for Finance and Asset Management, Councillor Michael Illman, seconded by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Spooner, the Council

RESOLVED:

- (1) That the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2016-17 be noted.
- (2) That the actual prudential indicators reported for 2016-17, as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report submitted to the Council, be approved.
- (3) That the changes to the 2017-18 investment policy, as detailed in section 13 of the report, be approved.

Reasons for Decision:

- To comply with the Council's treasury management policy statement, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on treasury management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.
- To allow the Council to further diversify its investment portfolio.

CO38 REVIEW OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

The Council considered a report which outlined the work undertaken by overview and scrutiny during the past year and, within Appendix 1 to the report, its future work programme as thus far developed.

Decisions taken under the 'urgency' provisions and the use of 'call-in' were detailed within the report. In 2016-17, two decisions were taken under the urgency provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, and there were no call-ins.

The report had also been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 11 July 2017, and the Committee had commended it to Council.

Upon the motion of Councillor Caroline Reeves, seconded by Councillor Adrian Chandler, the Council

RESOLVED:

- (1) That the report be commended as the annual report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 2016-17.
- (2) That no changes be made to the current rules relating to call in or urgency provisions.

Reasons for Decision:

- Article 8.2 (d) of the Constitution required the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to report annually to the full Council on its work undertaken during the year, its future work programme, and amended working methods if appropriate.
- Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17(i), required the operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency to be monitored annually and reported to Council with proposals for review if necessary.

CO39 REVISED GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS: 12 MONTH REVIEW

The Council was reminded that, following a review by scrutiny, the Council had introduced revised governance arrangements in January 2016. These hybrid arrangements included an altered role for a new, single Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC), and the addition of two Executive Advisory Boards (EABs) to advise and make recommendations to the Leader and Executive.

The Council had also agreed to review the operation of these arrangements after twelve months. As part of this process, a seminar was held on 7 March 2017 to which all councillors were invited to review the new governance arrangements and put forward suggestions for improvements. The proposals had been considered separately by the Corporate Governance and Standards Committee (15 June 2017), the Borough EAB (10 July 2017), the OSC (11 July 2017), and the Society EAB (13 July 2017).

The Council considered a report on the outcome of the twelve-month review, which included details of the various recommendations from each of the committees and boards referred to above.

Upon the motion of the Deputy Leader of the Council, Councillor Matt Furniss, seconded by Councillor Caroline Reeves, the Council

RESOLVED:

- (1) That the Council continues the public webcasting of meetings of the Executive Advisory Boards.
- (2) That six-monthly meetings between all members of the Executive and the EAB and O&S Committee chairmen and vice-chairmen (together with one representative from the Corporate Management Team) be established to discuss topic areas for future work programmes and to discuss how the EABs and O&S Committee could make a more effective contribution to the decision-making process.

- (3) That, in order to improve the arrangements for topic selection and agenda planning, the Executive/CMT be requested to provide suggestions for topic areas for EABs drawn from the (revised) Corporate Plan Action Plan for consideration at future work programme meetings and to have a CMT (as well as Executive) representative attend those meetings.
- (4) That the approach to development of the O&S Committee work programme be broadened, by amending O&S Procedure Rules to introduce a more flexible approach to topic selection through replacing the topic selection flow chart in O&S Procedure Rules with the PAPER tool.
- (5) That, in addition to raising questions at meetings, O&S Committee members should have an opportunity for putting written questions to lead councillors attending O&S Committee meetings in advance so that written answers may be prepared.
- (6) That lead councillors should normally present matters (with officer support) for discussion at EAB meetings and engage actively in a dialogue with the EABs regarding those matters, and that the terms of reference of the EABs be amended accordingly.
- (7) That EABs be encouraged to set up task groups to research and review areas for policy development, subject to:
 - (a) consideration of implications for staff resources, and
 - (b) to the relevant lead councillors attending meetings of such task groups in an ex officio capacity as appropriate.
- (8) That more proactive measures for public engagement in respect of the work of the O&S Committee and the EABs be established by:
 - (a) inviting suggestions for the O&S work programme from the public and partners as well as officers and councillors; and
 - (b) alerting the public about O&S and EAB agenda topics on days leading up to the meeting, on the day of the meeting and action agreed at the meeting through press releases/social media.
- (9) That progress on matters previously considered by EABs be reported back to them when appropriate.
- (10) That a briefing note be provided to those officers invited to attend O&S Committee meetings to ensure there is full comprehension of the process, including the role of scrutiny and the Scrutiny Officer.

Reason for Decision:

To ensure that the Council's decision-making processes remain accessible, robust and accountable to local people.

CO40 COUNCILLOR APPOINTMENTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS WORKING GROUP: FINAL REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Councillors were reminded that, at its meeting on 11 April 2017, the Council had considered the interim report of the External Organisations Working Group, and had approved a number of recommendations, which had sought to improve the process of appointing councillors to external organisations. These included the introduction of a person profile to be completed by external organisations to ensure that the appointment is a suitable match to the requirements of the organisation and the capacity of the individual councillor in terms of skills, experience and

time commitment. Since then, the Working Group had applied the new processes to undertake a review of councillor appointments to individual external organisations.

The Council now considered a report setting out the final recommendations of the Working Group, which included details of:

- those external organisations where existing appointments should continue as they complied with the assessment criteria approved by the Council on 11 April 2017
- possible new appointments that the Council might wish to consider, and
- those external organisations where formal appointments should discontinue as it was not felt that they complied with the assessment criteria

The report had been considered by the Corporate Governance and Standards Committee at its meeting held on 15 June 2017. The Committee had supported the working group's final recommendations and had asked the Democratic Services Manager to send copies of all the person profile forms completed by the various external organisations to all councillors so that they could discuss with group leaders their suitability for the roles in terms of relevant skills and experience. Councillors nominated by their groups for appointment to an external organisation were requested to complete and submit to the Democratic Services Manager the relevant person profile forms, with details of their relevant skills and experience.

Details of nominations received were set out in the Order Paper. Councillors noted that all the appointments to those external organisations which the Council was recommended to continue, together with the various new appointments, were uncontested. These appointments would therefore be determined formally by the Democratic Services Manager in accordance with the delegated authority agreed by the Council on 11 April 2017, upon receipt of all the relevant councillor profile forms from the nominees and deputy nominees.

Upon the motion of the Deputy Leader of the Council, Councillor Matt Furniss, seconded by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Spooner, the Council

RESOLVED:

(1) That the Council agrees to continue the appointment of councillors to the external organisations listed in Column 1 and Column 2 below:

Column 1	Column 2
 Access Group, Guildford Archbishop Abbot's Exhibition Foundation Ash Citizens' Advice Bureau Ash Manor School - Joint Committee (sports facilities) Disability Challengers Guildford Action for Community Care Guildford Arts Guildford Citizens Advice Bureau Guildford Freiburg Association Guildford Poyle Charities Guildford Sunset Homes Oakleaf Enterprise Royal Surrey County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust South East Employers Sport Guildford Surrey County Playing Fields Association 	 Basingstoke Canal Joint Management Committee Blackwater Valley Advisory Committee for Public Transport Blackwater Valley Countryside Partnership Surrey Museums Consultative Committee Surrey Countryside Partnership Board

Column 1		Column 2
•	Surrey Hills AONB Board	
•	Surrey Hills AONB Partnership	
•	Tourism South East	
•	Yvonne Arnaud Theatre Management	
	Ltd and Yvonne Arnaud Theatre Trust	

(2) That the Council agrees to commence the appointment of councillors to the external organisations listed in Column 1 and Column 2 below:

Column 1		Column 2	
•	Guildford Allotments Society	•	Experience Guildford (BID)
•	Guildford Book Festival	•	Guildford Philanthropy Fund Panel
•	Guildford in Bloom	•	Surrey Countryside and Rural
•	Southern Pro Musica		Enterprise Forum (SCREF)
•	Surrey County Agricultural Society		_
•	Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership		
•	Watts Gallery (Limnerslease)		

- (3) That, in future, full Council approves any contested appointments to external organisations listed in Column 1 in paragraphs (1) and (2) above, and the Executive approves any contested appointments to external organisations listed in Column 2 in paragraphs (1) and (2) above.
- (4) That, subject to paragraphs (5) and (6) below, the Council agrees to discontinue the appointment of councillors to the following external organisations:
 - Abbot's Hospital (Trinity Hospital Governors)
 - Fairlands, Liddington Hall and Gravetts Lane Community Association
 - Friends of the Hurtwood
 - Guildford Borough Tenants' Action Group
 - Guildford Environmental Forum
 - Guildford Waterside Centre
 - The Hilliers Almshouses (Guildford)
 - Holy Trinity (Guildford) Housing Association
 - Home Start (Ash and Guildford) Management Committee
 - Hospital of William Parsons (Stoke Hospital Almshouse)
 - Jacobs Well Residents Association
 - Mukono Link
 - Royal Grammar School
 - South West Surrey CRUSE Bereavement Care
 - Wanborough Barns Management Committee
 - Westborough and Park Barn Community Centre
 - Wey Valley Bowls Assoc. Ltd.
- (5) That, notwithstanding paragraph (4) above, the Council agrees to continue the ex officio appointment of the Mayor as a trustee and governor/director to Abbot's Hospital (Trinity Hospital Governors) and the Royal Grammar School.
- (6) That, in relation to those external organisations listed in paragraph (4) above where the Council has agreed to discontinue appointments, and where the term of office of the current appointees expires in 2018 or 2019, the Council agrees that such appointments should be allowed to run their course.
- (7) That in relation to those external organisations listed in paragraph (1) where the Council agrees to continue making appointments, and where the term of office of the current

- appointees expires in 2018 or 2019, the Council agrees that such appointments should continue until 2019.
- (8) That the Council confirms that the Armed Forces Champion's role shall include the task of ex-officio trustee to the Sea Cadets (Guildford Unit).

Reason for Decision:

To ensure that the Council maintains and develops relationships with key local organisations and partners in the most mutually productive ways and in the best interests of local people.

CO41 SAFER GUILDFORD PARTNERSHIP PLAN

The Council considered a report on the work and strategic priorities of the Safer Guildford Partnership, including the Safer Guildford Partnership Plan 2017-2020, which was appended to the report and which was recommended for adoption by the Council.

The Safer Guildford Partnership was required to carry out an annual partnership strategic assessment, the purpose of which was to assist in producing the priorities for the annual three-year rolling partnership plan. The data, which formed the basis of this analysis, was drawn from a variety of sources and partner agencies across Guildford and Surrey.

The Partnership's priorities were based on key policy areas and the Surrey County Council strategic assessment, which drew together key data sets and combined these with the knowledge and experience of local partners. In summary, these were:

- To focus on threat, harm, risk and vulnerability, including
 - o serious and organised crime
 - o child sexual exploitation
 - modern day slavery
 - o domestic abuse
 - threat of radicalisation
 - cyber related crime
 - supporting vulnerable victims
- To identify and tackle anti-social behaviour hotspot locations and perpetrators
- To reduce re-offending
- To promote reassurance to the public to help make communities stronger

These priorities were included in the proposed new Safer Guildford Partnership Plan 2017-2020, which had been approved by the Executive of the Safer Guildford Partnership, and recommended for adoption by the Council's Executive.

A review of the Safer Guildford Partnership had recently been completed, which sought to ensure that:

- current ways of working continued to be effective;
- the partnership was fit for purpose and using evidence to inform its activities
- the membership was appropriate to deliver against its priorities
- the partnership was responding to changing national and local priorities

Arising from the review, a number of governance and reporting changes within the Partnership had been introduced, including:

- new members to address gaps in partner representation, including representatives of mental health and probation;
- a revised delivery structure;
- new terms of reference, meeting schedule, agenda structure and performance management arrangements;
- the introduction of an annual review forum to maintain the effectiveness of the Partnership; and
- through a partnership development event, looking back at what had gone well and learning from what may not have.

The ambition of the Safer Guildford Partnership was to be intelligence led and use resources smartly to deliver its community safety plan. This would ensure effective performance and the delivery of tangible outcomes in the right place at the right time.

To support this approach, the Partnership had agreed to the creation of a Partnership Community Safety Analyst. This new role would produce a local strategic assessment based on partnership intelligence and data, drive the work, and focus resources of the partnership. The role would also develop and implement a new performance management framework to enable the partnership to be accountable and improve and provide evidence of its effectiveness. The role would be a fixed term part-time contract for one year initially and the grading was subject to job evaluation. The post would be funded jointly by a significant contribution from Surrey Police and carry forward monies from the Safer Guildford Partnership allocation and report directly to the Community Safety Manager.

The Partnership would maintain operational delivery by addressing matters of local concern through the Community Harm and Risk Management Meeting (CHaRMM) and the Joint Action Group (JAG).

Upon the motion of the Lead Councillor for Licensing and Community Safety, Councillor Graham Ellwood, seconded by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Spooner, the Council

RESOLVED:

That the Safer Guildford Partnership Plan 2017-2020, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report submitted to the Council, be adopted.

Reason for Decision:

To meet the requirement for the Council to adopt a three-year community safety plan for the borough.

CO42 APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Council was informed that, on 28 June 2017, the Employment Committee had conducted interviews for the appointment of a Deputy Managing Director on a two-year fixed-term contract. Candidates were limited to current Directors with at least one year's experience as a Director at the Council.

Following the interviews, the Employment Committee had recommended that Steve White, Director of Resources, be appointed Deputy Managing Director.

As the post of Deputy Managing Director was a 'non statutory chief officer' under the terms of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as amended), it was possible to delegate responsibility for discharging the function of appointment of an officer as Deputy Managing Director to a committee of the Council, provided that at least one member of the Executive was a member of any such committee. Accordingly, delegated authority was sought for the Employment Committee to make such appointments in the future. This would

require appropriate amendments to be made to that Committee's terms of reference and Officer Employment Procedure Rules (OEPRs).

Upon the motion of the Leader of the Council, Councillor Paul Spooner, seconded by the Deputy Leader of the Council, Councillor Matt Furniss, the Council

RESOLVED:

- (1) That, subject to no material or well-founded objection being made by the Leader on behalf of the Executive, Steve White, Director of Resources, be appointed as Deputy Managing Director for a fixed term of two years.
- (2) That the Employment Committee be authorised to appoint to the post of Deputy Managing Director in the future and that the Committee's terms of reference and Officer Employment Procedure Rules be amended accordingly.

Reasons for Decision:

- To appoint a Deputy Managing Director
- To ensure that recruitment to the post of Deputy Managing Director is undertaken as expeditiously as possible in future

CO43 MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE

The Council received and noted the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 16 May, 23 May, and 27 June 2017.

CO44 COMMON SEAL

The Council

RESOLVED: That the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to any documents to give effect to any decisions taken by the Council at this meeting.

The meeting finished at 7.50 pm

Signed	Date
Mayor	